
          
 

 
This meeting is being held via Zoom Teleconference and will be recorded.  
Meeting details as follows: 

 Click link to join meeting: https://zoom.us/j/96031342286 Meeting ID: 960 3134 2286 
 

 
COUNCIL 
Mayor Jamie Ross 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor John Snell 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Ross will call the meeting to order. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, April 12, 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, April 12, 2021 be approved as 

circulated. 
3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, March 22, 2021, Reconvened to March 25, 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held March 22, 2021, 

Reconvened to March 25, 2021 be adopted. 

4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
4.1 Kerri Palmer Isaak, Chair & Jennifer Blatherwick, School Trustee, School District  43 
 (Coquitlam), regarding the Child Care Task Force  

4.2 Shezana Hassko, TransLink, Acting Director Infrastructure Programs, regarding 
 2021 Municipal Cost Share Programs 
  
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 

VILLAGE HALL 
April 12, 2021 

7:00 PM 

https://zoom.us/j/96031342286


REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  April 12, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 04 12\2.1 2021 04 12 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

5. REPORTS 
5.1 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated April 12, 2021 regarding 

TransLink Funding Opportunities 
 Recommendations: 
 That Council approve staff proceeding with a funding application under the Major 
 Road Network and Bike Upgrades (MRNB), Bicycle Infrastructure Capital Cost 
 Share (BICCS) and the Walking Infrastructure to Transit (WITT) TransLink 
 funding programs for a multi-use path, with 75% TransLink funding ($129,625) 
 and 25% ($43,208) Village of Belcarra funding, with the Village’s share coming 
 from its general capital reserve fund.   

5.2 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated April 12, 2021 regarding Grant 
 Requests 
 Recommendation: 
 That the report entitled “Grant Requests” dated April 12, 2021, be received for 
 information.  
5.3 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated April 12, 2021 regarding 
 Provisional 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan – Public Consultation 
 Recommendations: 
 That the Village of Belcarra 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan bylaw be prepared on the 
 basis of the following: 
 

____% increase in property taxes for 2021, ____ % increase in property taxes for 
2022, ____ % increase in property taxes for 2023, ____ % increase in property 
taxes for 2024, and ____ % increase in property taxes for 2025;  

 
____% increase in water user rates for 2021, ____ % increase in water user rates 
for 2022, ____ % increase in water user rates for 2023, ____ % increase in water 
user rates for 2024, and ____ % increase in water user rates for 2025; and 

 
 ____% increase in Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) user rates for 2021, ____ % 
increase in WARD user rates for 2022, ____ % increase in WARD user rates for 
2023, ____ % increase in  
WARD user rates for 2024, and ____ % increase in WARD user rates for 2025.  

6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND PROJECT LEADS 

7. BYLAWS 
 No items. 

8. CORRESPONDENCE/PROCLAMATIONS 
Recommendation: 

 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.15 be received. 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  April 12, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 04 12\2.1 2021 04 12 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

ACTION ITEMS 
8.1 a) Brenda Locke, Councillor & Jack Singh Hundial, Councillor, City of Surrey,    

 letter dated February 15, 2021 regarding Surrey’s Police Transition’s will 
 Impact Public Safety in British Columbia and there is an urgent need for a 
 feasibility study. 

 b) John McEwen, Mayor, Village of Anmore, letter dated March 8, 2021 regarding  
 The Impact of the City of Surrey’s Police Transition 
Recommendation: 
That Council provide feedback to the Village of Anmore on any concerns regarding 
potential effects to our local service area with respect to the City of Surrey Police 
Transition. 

8.2 Janet Andrews, Secretary-Treasurer, New Westminster & District Labour Council, 
 letter dated March 16, 2021 regarding Declaration of April 28, 2021 as the official 
 “Day of Mourning for Workers Killed and Injured on the Job” 

Recommendation: 
 That Council declare April 28, 2021 as the official “Day of Mourning for Workers 
 Killed and Injured on the Job”. 
8.3 Linda Cuffe, Belcarra Community Council, Co. Mayo, Ireland, email dated          
 April 1, 2021 regarding Resident Participation in a Walk/Run/Jog/Crawl the 
 Distance from Belcarra, Co. Mayo to Belcarra, BC Fundraiser 
 Recommendation: 
 That Council support resident participation and provide the information to the 
 residents; and  
 That residents be requested to track their distances and provide the information 
 directly to the coordinator at the Belcarra Community Council in Co. Mayo, Ireland. 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.4 Mike Hurley, Mayor, City of Burnaby, letter to Honourable Selina Robinson, MLA, 
 BC Minister of Finance dated February 25, 2021 regarding Assessment Processes 
 and Appeals (full report available at the Village office) 
8.5 Mike Little, Mayor, District of North Vancouver, letter dated March 4, 2021 
 regarding Help Cities Lead (HCL) Campaign 
8.6 Lyn Hall, Mayor, City of Prince George, letter dated March 17, 2021 to Honourable 
 Patty Hajdu, Minister of Health, regarding Opioid Crisis and Call for Overdose 
 Action Plan 
8.7 Lyn Hall, Mayor, City of Prince George, letter dated March 17, 2021 to the BC 
 Utilities Commission regarding British Columbia Hydro & Power Authority (BC 
 Hydro): 2020 Street Lighting Rate Application  
8.8 District of Sicamous, letter dated March 18, 2021 to Honourable Katrine Conroy, 
 Forests, Lands, Natural Resource Operations & Rural Development regarding 
 Aquatic Invasive Species Enforcement 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  April 12, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 04 12\2.1 2021 04 12 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

8.9 Public Health Agency of Canada, communication received March 19, 2021
 regarding Got a Creative Idea to Promote COVID-19 Vaccines in Your Community? 
8.10 Andy Adams, Mayor, City of Campbell River, letter dated March 24, 2021 regarding 
 Support for 988 Crisis Line  
8.11 Pierce McNeal, President, Canada Pacific Trials Association, letter dated                
 April 7, 2021  regarding Metro Vancouver Regional District Board Decision to 
 Terminate Our Lease in Belcarra Park & letter of support from 12 Local Motorcycle 
 Shops and Dealerships regarding the Economic Impact of the Decision (full report 
 available in the Village office) 
8.12 Brian Ashford, Larry Carlsen, Sy Rodgers, Lynda Spence & Bob Wilson, Farrer 
 Cove Committee Members, letter dated March 19, 2021 regarding Letter of 
 Appreciation for Council Support of the Farrer Cove Road Project 
8.13 Ian Devlin, Belcarra Resident, email dated March 20, 2021 regarding Message       
 to Mayor & Council regarding Short Term Rental Accommodation and Bed & 
 Breakfast  
8.14 Brian Hirsch, Belcarra Resident, email dated March 21, 2021 regarding Priorities 
 and Monday’s Council Meeting (March 22nd) 
8.15 Deborah Struk, Belcarra Resident, email dated March 29, 2021 regarding 
 IMPORTANT: Cancellation of Belcarra Children’s Easter Event in Village Parking 
 Lot by Staff and FHA  

9. NEW BUSINESS 

10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 

11. RESOLUTION TO CLOSE MEETING 
 Recommendation:  

That the April 12, 2021 meeting of Council be closed pursuant to the Community 
Charter Section 90 (1) “A part of a Council meeting may be closed to the public if 
the subject matter being considered relates to or is one or more of the following: 

(a) Personal information about an identifiable individual who holds or is 
being considered for a position as an officer, employee or agent of the 
municipality or another position appointed by the municipality; 

(c) labour relations or other employee relations; 
(k) negotiations and related discussions respecting the proposed   
 provision of a municipal service that are at their preliminary stages and 
 that, in the view of the council, could reasonably be expected to harm 
 the interests of the municipality if they were held in public.” 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 
 Recommendation: 
 That the April 12, 2021 Regular Meeting be adjourned. 
 



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 04 12\3.1 2021 03 22 Regular Council Minutes.docx 

          
 

 
This meeting was held via Zoom Teleconference and was recorded. 

 

Council in Attendance 
Mayor Jamie Ross 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor John Snell 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
Staff in Attendance 
Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
Paula Richardson, Acting Corporate Officer 
Connie Esposito, Recording Secretary 

Staff Absent 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 

Others in Attendance 
Richard White, RWPAS Ltd., Planning Consultant (left 7:14 pm on Mar 22)  
Dan Watson, Pooni Group, Planning Consultant 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, K&E Business Services (left 9:55 pm Mar 25) 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Ross called the meeting to order at 7:01 pm. 

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, March 22, 2021 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, March 22, 2021 be approved 

as circulated. 
CARRIED 

 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES 

VIA ZOOM 
March 22, 2021 at 7:00 pm Reconvened  

to March 25, 2021 at 7:00 pm 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.1



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  March 22, 2021 
  Reconvened to March 25, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 04 12\3.1 2021 03 22 Regular Council Minutes.docx 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, March 8, 2021 

Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held March 8, 2021 be 

adopted. 
CARRIED 

4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 No items presented. 
5. REPORTS 
5.1 Richard White, RWPAS, Planning Consultant, report dated March 22, 2021 
 regarding Province of British Columbia Housing Needs Assessment — UBCM 
 Housing Needs Report 

R. White provided an overview of the BC Housing Needs Assessment Report. He 
noted that the Housing Needs Assessment report is required by the Province and 
is supplemented with a $15,000 grant in order to cover the cost of producing the 
report. The report will be produced along with the Villages of Anmore and Lions 
Bay. 
Moved by:  Councillor Drake 

 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That Staff and the Village Planning Consultants be directed to prepare a          
 Belcarra Housing Needs Assessment using the UBCM grant, in co-operation         
 with the Villages of Lions Bay and Anmore. 

CARRIED 
5.2 Dan Watson, Pooni Group, Planning Consultant, report dated March 22, 2021 

regarding Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B) 
Policy update 
D. Watson provided an overview of the Short-Term Rental Accommodation 
(STRA) and Bed and Breakfast (B&B) Policy report. He outlined his report noting 
the history of the policy that was approved by Council in 2020 and to bring back 
the policy for Council review. 
That the Village of Belcarra Corporate Policy No. 210 be amended as follows: 
Item 1: STRA/B&B Policy 2.5: Proof of Insurance 

Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
That Council retain STRA/B&B Policy 2.5 requirement for $2,000,000 insurance, 
naming the Village as additional insured. 

CARRIED 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  March 22, 2021 
  Reconvened to March 25, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 04 12\3.1 2021 03 22 Regular Council Minutes.docx 

Item 2: STRA/B&B Policy 5.1: Length of Stay 

Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
Seconded by: Councillor Snell 
That Council amend STRA/B&B Policy 5.1 as follows: “Short Term Rental and/or 
Bed & Breakfast Accommodations are permitted for a maximum stay of 30 nights 
per stay.” 

CARRIED 
Item 3:  STRA/B&B Section 6: Parking and Bylaw Compliance and  
  Section 8: Noise and Nuisance 
 
Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
That Council retain STRA/B&B Policy Section 6: Parking and Bylaw Compliance 
and Section 8: Noise and Nuisance. 

CARRIED 
Item 4: STRA/B&B Section 9: Enforcement 
 
Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
That Council retain STRA/B&B Policy Section 9: Enforcement. 

CARRIED 
Item 5: Proposed amendments to Fees and Charges 
Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
That Council amend the motion by removing the requirement of a refundable 
security deposit of $1,000. 

CARRIED 
Mayor Ross voted in opposition 

 
 
Item 6: Community comments on the merits of STRA/B&B and   
  implications for the rental market 
Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
Councillor by: Councillor Clark  
That Staff be directed to report back on the implementation of Village of Belcarra 
Corporate Policy No. 210 one year after the adoption of Village of Belcarra 
Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 580, 2021, if adopted. 

CARRIED 
 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  March 22, 2021 
  Reconvened to March 25, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 04 12\3.1 2021 03 22 Regular Council Minutes.docx 

Item 7: Ownership Occupancy 
Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
That Council amend STRA/B&B Policy 4.1 as follows: “The property used for 
Short Term Rental or Bed & Breakfast Accommodation must be the principal 
residence of the business operator. The business operator must also be the/an 
owner of the property.” 

CARRIED 
Item 8: Community comments on the cost-benefit analysis of   
  implementing a STRA/B&B Policy 
 
Moved by:  Councillor Snell 
Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
That the Inspection Fee of $250 be removed from the Fees and Charges Bylaw 
517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 581, 2021. 

CARRIED 
Mayor Ross and Councillor Drake voted in opposition 

 
Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
That the following bylaw be given First and Second Reading, and be referred to 
Public Hearing:  

• Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018 Amendment Bylaw                
No. 580, 2021. 

CARRIED 
Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
That the following bylaws be given First and Second Readings: 

• Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment 
Bylaw No. 581, 2021; and 

• Village of Belcarra Business License Bylaw No. 227, 1995, Amendment 
Bylaw No. 582, 2021. 

CARRIED 
Mayor Ross voted in opposition 

Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
That the Regular Council Meeting dated March 22, 2021 be extended by 5 
minutes at 11:00 pm. 

CARRIED 
 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  March 22, 2021 
  Reconvened to March 25, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 04 12\3.1 2021 03 22 Regular Council Minutes.docx 

Moved by:  Councillor Snell 
Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
That the Regular Council Meeting dated March 22, 2021 be reconvened on 
Thursday, March 25, 2021 at 7:00 pm. 

CARRIED 
Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
Seconded by: Councillor Clark 

That the Regular Council meeting dated March 22, 2021 be adjourned at  
11:05 pm. 

CARRIED 
 March 25, 2021 – The meeting reconvened at Item 5.3 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Ross called to order the Regular Council meeting of March 25, 2021, 
 which was reconvened from March 22, 2021 at Item 5.3 at 7:00 pm 

5.3 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated March 22, 2021 Draft          
 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Update 

K. Bjorgaard provided a detailed overview of the Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial 
Plan noting the following: 
Appendix “A” – General Operating Fund Explanation of Variances versus Actual 
Appendix “B” – Water Operating Fund Explanation of Variances versus Actual 
Appendix “C” – Water Operating Fund Explanation of Variances versus Actual 
Appendix “D” – 2021 Budget Items Received for Discussion Purposes 
Appendix “E” – Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan 

 Considerable discussion ensued relative to various items included in the  
 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Update including: 

• Housing Needs Assessment Study; 
• Water debt payout option; 
• Explanation of increase in utility rates; 
• Varying rate schemes; 
• Parking ticket revenue recorded based on accrual-based accounting method; 
• Explanation of variances from 2020 versus 2021; 
• Review of budgets for the General Operating Fund, Water Fund and WARD 

fund; 
• Varying tax rate scenario’s to be brought forward for public consultation; 
• Inclusion of quote from Sea to Sky for live streaming of Council meetings; 
• Council approach to Midden Road repair and multi use courts; and 
• Grant requests from various community organizations to be reviewed. 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  March 22, 2021 
  Reconvened to March 25, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 04 12\3.1 2021 03 22 Regular Council Minutes.docx 

Recess at 9:00pm 
Meeting returned at 9:06pm 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 

That the Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Update report dated March 22, 2021 be 
received for information. 

CARRIED 
Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
That Council consider three tax rate plan scenarios to be brought forward for 
public consultation as follows: 

      Scenario A  
• 5% per increase in property taxes in 2021 and each year thereafter in the 

plan to 2025;  
• 10% per increase in water user rates in 2021 and each year thereafter in the 

plan to 2025; and  
• 10% per increase WARD (Waste & Recycle Depot) user rates in 2021 and 

each year thereafter in the plan to 2025.  

Scenario B  
• 7% per increase in property taxes in 2021 and each year thereafter in the 

plan to 2025;  
• 12% per increase in water user rates in 2021 and each year thereafter in the 

plan to 2025; and 
• 12% per increase WARD user rates in 2021 and each year thereafter in the 

plan to 2025.  

Scenario C  
• 10% per increase in property taxes in 2021 and each year thereafter in the 

plan to 2025;  
• 12% per increase in water user rates in 2021 and each year thereafter in the 

plan to 2025; and  
• 15% per increase WARD user rates in 2021 and each year thereafter in the 

plan to 2025.  
CARRIED 

Discussion ensued relative to the proposed expenditure for providing mulch for 
maintenance of Farrer Cove Road. 
Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
That Council approve the expenditure for mulch for the maintenance of Farrer Cove 
Road from the public works budget for 2021. 

CARRIED 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  March 22, 2021 
  Reconvened to March 25, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 04 12\3.1 2021 03 22 Regular Council Minutes.docx 

5.4 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated March 22, 2021 regarding the 
2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Bylaw Objectives and Policies 
K. Bjorgaard provided an overview of the Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Bylaw 
Objectives and Policies noting that this is required by the Community Charter.  

 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That “2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Bylaw Objectives and Policies” report dated 
 March 22, 2021, from the Financial Consultant, be received for information. 

CARRIED 
5.5 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated March 22, 2021 regarding 
 Monitored Fire Alarms 

Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the Monitored Fire Alarms report dated March 22, 2021, from the Financial 
 Consultant, be received for information. 

CARRIED 
6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND PROJECT LEADS 

Mayor’s Reports 
6.1 Doug Bakker - Resignation 

Mayor Ross provided a verbal report on the resignation of Doug Bakker. He 
noted that Doug Bakker has worked for the Village since 2012 as a Public Works 
Staff / Water Operator. He has also been a volunteer firefighter with the Sasamat 
Volunteer Fire Department (SVFD). Council and Staff wish him well in his future 
endeavors. 

6.2 COVID-19 Vaccination Schedule 
 Mayor Ross provided a verbal report regarding the COVID-19 vaccination 
 schedule noting that Fraser Health has accelerated the booking schedule for 
 COVID-19 immunization appointments. The Village website is updated regularly 
 with information from Fraser Health. 

6.3 Strategic Plan Initiatives 
 Mayor Ross spoke regarding the Strategic Plan Initiatives priority list which 

include: 

• Asset Management 
• Consolidated Enhanced Fire Protection 
• Parking Bylaw Enforcement 
• Official Community Plan 
• Group Wharfage’s 
• Belcarra Community Pathways 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  March 22, 2021 
  Reconvened to March 25, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 04 12\3.1 2021 03 22 Regular Council Minutes.docx 

• Road to Farrer Cove 
• Traffic Control 
• Multi Use Court 

6.4 Invitation Letters to Committees 
Mayor Ross and the Council representatives are meeting with respective 
Committees in the coming weeks to receive an update with possible 
recommendations to be brought forward for Council review. 

6.5 Councillor Clark - Reports 
Councillor Clark commented regarding: 
• The parking initiatives and current rules that will remain in effect until a public 

meeting takes place;  
• The cutting of trees on park land that have been identified as diseased and 

therefore hazardous trees that need to be removed; and 
• Metro Vancouver Park’s implementation of pay parking that will take effect on 

April 1, 2021 with payment methods to include parking meters and through 
apps on smartphones. 

6.6 Councillor Drake - Report 
Councillor Drake commenting regarding Fire Smart initiatives that will be 
forthcoming pending the information received by the District of North Vancouver 
and recommendations from the Water Committee. 

6.7 Councillor Wilder - Report 
Councillor Wilder commented regarding the moratorium on docks in Bedwell Bay 
and seeking clarification on details included in the map from the Vancouver Port 
Authority. 

7. BYLAWS 
7.1 Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021   

Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the “Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021” be adopted. 

CARRIED 
8. CORRESPONDENCE/PROCLAMATIONS 

Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.15 be received. 

CARRIED 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  March 22, 2021 
  Reconvened to March 25, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 04 12\3.1 2021 03 22 Regular Council Minutes.docx 

ACTION ITEMS 
 No items. 
 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.1 Walt Cobb, Mayor, City of Williams Lake, letter dated February 18, 2021 to 
 Premier John Horgan, Hon. Adrian Dix, Minister of Health and Dr. Bonnie Henry, 
 Provincial Health Officer, regarding Vaccine Distribution 
8.2 Jonathan Cote, Mayor, City of New Westminster, letter dated March 4, 2021 
 regarding Local Government Election Candidates: Access to Multifamily 
 Dwellings during the Campaign Period (full report available at the Village office) 
8.3 Jonathan Cote, Mayor, City of New Westminster, letter dated March 4, 2021 
 regarding Single-Use Item Regional Regulation (full report available at the Village 
 office) 
8.4 Gina Farid, Administrative Assistant, Office of Nelly Shin, MP, email dated    
 March 4, 2021 regarding Canada Healthy Communities Initiative  
8.5 Jonathan Cote, Mayor, City of New Westminster, letters dated March 5, 2021 to 
 Honourable Harry Bains, Minister of Labour and Honourable Melanie Mark, 
 Minister of Tourism, Arts, Culture & Sport regarding Support for Laid-off Hotel & 
 Tourism Industry Workers 
8.6 Christine Fraser, Mayor, Township of Spallumcheen, letter dated March 5, 2021 
 to Honourable Patty Hajdu regarding Support for 988 Crisis Line  
8.7 Dr. Victoria Lee, President & Chief Executive Officer, Fraser Health Authority, 
 letter dated March 8, 2021 regarding COVID-19 Immunization Clinics for Belcarra 
8.8 Lisa Helps, Mayor, City of Victoria, letter dated March 10, 2021 regarding 
 Endorsement of the Help Cities Lead Campaign 
8.9  Walt Cobb, Mayor, City of Williams Lake, letter dated March 11, 2021 to     
 Premier John Hogan regarding Call for Public Inquiry: Stronger Sentencing for 
 Prolific & Repeat Offenders 
8.10 Kate Barchard, Corporate Officer, City of Pitt Meadows, letter dated March 11, 2021
 regarding Fair Taxation from Railway Operations & Industrial Parks  
8.11 Jan Simpson, National President, Canadian Union of Postal Workers, letter dated 
 March 2021 regarding Request for Support for Delivering Community Power 
8.12 Colleen MacDonald, Belcarra Resident, email dated March 7, 2021 regarding 
 Recording of Mikael Colville-Anderson Now Available (full report available at 
 the Village office) 
8.13 Sherry Chisholm, Belcarra Resident, letter dated March 9, 2021 regarding The 
 Concerned Taxpayer 
8.14 Julie Chamberlain, Belcarra Resident, email dated March 10, 2021 regarding 
 Abuse of Belcarra Mayor and Council 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  March 22, 2021 
  Reconvened to March 25, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 04 12\3.1 2021 03 22 Regular Council Minutes.docx 

8.15 Brian Hirsch, Belcarra Resident, email dated March 17, 2021 regarding 
 Resubmission: Clarification & Comments on Corporate Policy 210 regarding  
 STRA & B&B  

9. NEW BUSINESS 
No items presented. 

10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 

Joe Elworthy, Belcarra Resident, commented regarding the Financial Plan and 
requested that Council consider the ongoing impact of the COVID-19 pandemic 
on personal finances with respect to property taxes and the budget. 
Ben Shoolestani, Belcarra Resident, queried regarding the status of moratoriums 
on docks in Bedwell Bay and clarification on updating of maps provided by the 
Vancouver Port Authority. 

Conflict of Interest  
10:21 pm  Mayor Ross declared a Conflict of Interest and recused himself from the Regular 

Council meeting noting that he was not entitled to participate because of a direct 
or indirect pecuniary interest in the matter. 

Deputy Mayor Clark assumed the Chair 

 Deputy Mayor Clark noted that the topic of maps related to docks will be brought 
forward at a later date and is not part of the current Regular Council Agenda  

Mayor Ross returned to the meeting at 10:23 pm and assumed the Chair. 

Conflict of Interest  
10:26 pm  Mayor Ross declared a Conflict of Interest and recused himself from the Regular 

Council meeting noting that he was not entitled to participate because of a direct 
or indirect pecuniary interest in the matter. 

 Deputy Mayor Clark assumed the Chair 

 Deputy Mayor Clark reiterated her earlier statement that the topic of maps related 
to docks will be brought forward at a later date and is not part of the current 
Regular Council Agenda 

 Mayor Ross returned to the meeting at 10:28 pm and assumed the Chair. 

Peter Struk, Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to a letter that included 
comments pertaining to the gallery.  

 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  March 22, 2021 
  Reconvened to March 25, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 04 12\3.1 2021 03 22 Regular Council Minutes.docx 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 

 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That the March 25, 2021 Regular Meeting be adjourned at 10:38 pm. 
 

CARRIED      
Certified Correct: 
 

 
 
 

   

Jamie Ross 
Mayor  

  Paula Richardson 
Acting Corporate Officer 

 
 



2021 Municipal Cost Share Programs

Village of Belcarra
April 12, 2021

prichardson
Typewritten Text
4.2



Agenda

2021 Programs 
Funding Available 

Timeline

Guidelines

Project Eligibility by 
Program

BICCS /WITT Dynamic 
Eligibility map

Application Form What do we need

Program Progress Next steps





Mayors’ Vision



Municipal Funding 
Programs

Operations & 
Maintenance 

O&M R

Structures

Improvements

MRNB

BICCS

WITTBSR

Suite of Cost 
Share Programs

Automatic

Must 
Apply



https://www.translink.ca/Getting-
Around/Driving/Major-Road-Network-and-
Bridges.aspx

Municipal Funding Programs - Online

https://www.translink.ca/Getting-Around/Driving/Major-Road-Network-and-Bridges.aspx


2021 Municipal Funding Programs

BSR
Bus, Speed, 

Reliability and 
Infrastructure

Increase bus, 
speed and 

reliability along 
the Frequent 

Transit Network, 
and at major 
transit nodes

$4,160,000

Cost Shared 
up to 100%

WITT
Walking 

Infrastructure          
to Transit

Enhance and 
expand 

pedestrian 
access to 

frequent transit

$5,850,000

Cost Shared 
up to 75%

BICCS
Bicycle 

Infrastructure 
Capital Cost 

Share

Catalyze 
investment in 

regional cycling 
infrastructure

$15,470,000

Cost Shared 
up to 75%

MRN 
Structures

Seismic, 
Rehabilitation of 
Structures on the 

MRN

Catalyze 
investment in 
rehabilitation, 

replacement and 
seismic retrofit of 
MRN structures

$15,210,000

Cost Shared 
up to 50%

MRNB
Major Road 

Network and Bike 
Upgrades

Manage and improve 
the capacity, 

efficiency and safety 
of the MRN network 
including in cycling 

infrastructure

$23,400,000

Cost Shared 
up to 75%

R
Pavement 

Rehabilitation on 
MRN

TransLink provides 
annual funding 
for pavement 

rehabilitation on 
the MRN

$24,247,723

100% Annual 
Funding  

OM
Operation & 

Maintenance on 
MRN

TransLink provides 
annual funding 

municipalities to 
operate, and 

maintain the MRN

$34,317,785

100% Annual 
Funding  

COST SHARE PROGRAMS: $64,090,000 OMR: $58,565,508



Belcarra’s Allocation Amounts
2021 Programs Cost Share Programs

Municipality OMR MRNB BICCS
(allocated)

WITT
(allocated)

BELCARRA $113,000 $82,000 $58,000 $47,000 

Already 
applied 

Bedwell Bay 
Cats Eyes $19,875

Bedwell Bay 
Safety Barriers $37,500

Total $57,375

MRNB (remaining) + 
BICCS (allocated) + 
WITT (allocated) = 

$129,625



Potential Project Details
• Total Project Cost: $172,833

– $129,625 (TransLink’s share at 75%)
– $43,208 (Belcarra’s share at 25%)

• To use funding from MRNB, BICCS, WITT, municipalities 
typically build multi-use paths (MUP)
– MUPs must be a minimum of 2.7m wide (3.0m preferred)
– MUPs must be paved
– Wayfinding signage, lighting, bike racks, other MUP

enhancements are eligible for funding under the Programs



2021 Cost Share Program Timeline 

2020

Oct Dec Mar Apr May Jun Jul AugFebJanSep Nov

2021

Call for Applications
(November 2, 2020)

Applications Due
(January 29, 2021) CMC Approval 

Evaluation Agreement Execution*

TPSC & 
OMRSC &
RTAC 
Endorsement

WE ARE HERE



Project Eligibility- MRNB
• Any upgrade project on the Major Road 

Network (MRN)
– Road Infrastructure

– Pedestrian Infrastructure 

• Bike project on or off the MRN 
– Must meet BICCS guideline requirements

2021 MRNB Projects

Bedwell Bay Cats 
Eyes $19,875

Bedwell Bay Safety 
Barriers $37,500

Total $57,375



Project Eligibility- BICCS
Level of Comfort Type of Facilities

Class 1: Comfortable for All 
Cyclists

(50-75% Cost Share)

Protected Bike Lane

Off-Street Path (Multi-Use or Bike only)

Neighborhood Street Bikeway (<500 VPD)

Class 2: Comfortable for Most 
Cyclists

(50% Cost Share)

Buffer Bike Lane (TAC) (≤50 km/hr, ≤4,000-5000 VPD)

Painted Bike Lane (TAC) (≤50 km/hr, ≤4,000-5000
VPD)

Neighborhood Street Bikeway (<2500 VPD)

Class 3: Comfortable for Most 
Cyclists

(Not Eligible for Cost Share)

Painted Bike Lane (TAC) (>50 km/hr, >4,000-5000
VPD)

Wide curb lane

https://regionalroads.com/biccswitteligibility.php

https://regionalroads.com/biccswitteligibility.php


Project Eligibility- WITT
• New or enhanced sidewalks
• New or enhanced multi-use pathways 
• Pedestrian refuge islands
• New or improved pedestrian crossings
• Grade-separated pedestrian crossings 
• Wheelchair ramps 
• Re-grading walkways to meet accessibility standards 
• Tactile walking surface indicators 
• Other accessibility improvements 
• Weather protected walkways or paths 
• Installing street furniture and pedestrian amenities  
• New or enhanced pedestrian lighting 

https://regionalroads.com/biccswitteligibility.php

https://regionalroads.com/biccswitteligibility.php


Application Form
• Completed Application must be stamped by Professional 

Engineer
• Must pass the four criteria under Tier 1:
Project Eligibility 
Project Readiness
Project Design
Project Priority



Project Readiness
• Project is ready to move forward and complete within the 4-year timeframe

• i.e. project schedule 

• Project demonstrates that feasibility issues have been considered
• i.e. Public consultation have been performed and/or advocate group support

• There are no major obstacles to complete the project by the completion 
deadline

• i.e. council approval and/or municipal funds are secured



Project Design
• Project improve safety for drivers, cyclist, or pedestrians 
• Design conforms to the latest TAC Facility Design Guidelines 

– i.e. Multi-use path width, must be a min of 2.7m (3.0m preferred)

Other Considerations
• Does the design align with TransLink’s objective?
• Could this design be improved?
• Are there any opportunities that the municipalities may have missed?



Project Priority

•Project demonstrates a high priority in the 
municipality

•i.e. The project is supported by council, in their transportation plan, 
or have strong supporting evidence that they need to build this 
asap (accidents, resident complaints)

•Council resolutions are accepted  



Program Progress 
Next Steps:
• If the Village wishes to apply for their allocated MRNB, 

BICCS, WITT funds:
– TransLink must receive a completed application by no later 

than April 23, 2021 



Thank you for your time!



 
 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: April 12, 2021   
 
From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant & Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency 

Preparedness Coordinator 
  
Subject: TransLink Funding Opportunities 
 

 
Recommendations: 
That Council approve staff proceeding with a funding application under the Major Road Network and 
Bike Upgrades (MRNB), Bicycle Infrastructure Capital Cost Share (BICCS) and the Walking 
Infrastructure to Transit (WITT) TransLink funding programs for a multi-use path, with 75% TransLink 
funding ($129,625) and 25% ($43,208) Village of Belcarra funding, with the Village’s share coming from 
its general capital reserve fund.   

Purpose: 
This report highlights the TransLink funding opportunities that the Village has and which will be 
presented by Shezana Hassko, Acting Director of Infrastructure Programs with TransLink, at the        
April 12, 2021 Council meeting.   
 
Background: 
TransLink has various funding programs for communities beyond the regular operations, maintenance 
pavement rehabilitation (OMR) funding provided. The various programs and the Village allocated shares 
(total of $187,000) under the various programs are shown in the table below. Currently, the three (3) 
funding opportunities are under the Major Road Network and Bike Upgrades (MRNB), the Bicycle 
Infrastructure Capital Cost Share (BICCS) and the Walking Infrastructure to Transit (WITT) programs. 
Any unused funding under these programs would be available to other communities through a 
competitive process should the Village not utilize the available funding.  

The Village previously submitting funding applications for two projects, Cats Eyes and Barriers for 
Bedwell Bay Road, under the MRNB program. The submitted project costs for these two projects were 
$26,500 and $50,000, respectively, with 75% funding coming from TransLink and 25% from the Village. 
Together under the three (3) programs there is $129,625 of available funding left after funding the Cats 
Eyes and Barriers. At a 75% cost share, this means that the Village would have to contribute $43,208 if 
all of the funding was utilized, for total project amount of $172,833. 

 

 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.1



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant & Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator   
Council Report: TransLink Funding Opportunities 
April 12, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 

Program Purpose Funding 
Distribution 

2021 Allocated 
Funds 

OMR – Operations, 
Maintenance and Road 
Rehabilitation 

Funds the basic operation, 
maintenance and road 
infrastructure of MRN to a 
state of good repair 

Allocated 

$113,000 plus 
$12,094 ($12,094 

was transferred from 
2020 MRNB funds 

and Village will 
receive same extra 
amount annually to 

2024) 

MRN STRUCTURES 

Funds the structural (seismic) 
rehabilitation or replacement of 
structures on the MRN in order 
to maintain a state of good 
repair 

Competitive 
Evaluation based on 

performance 
Competitive Funding 

MRNB – Major Road 
Network & Bike 
Upgrades 

Funds smaller scale project on 
the MRN network that improve 
the capacity, efficiency and 
safety of all modes including 
cycling projects on/off MRN 
(see BICCS) 

Allocated 
Formula based on 

growth 
 

$82,000 

BICCS – Bicycle 
Infrastructure Cost Share 

Catalyzes investment in 
municipal cycling 
infrastructure to encourage 
cycling for transportation 

Allocated (Based on 
employment and 
population) and 

Competitive 

$58,000 

WITT – Walking 
Infrastructure to Transit 

Invests in municipal walking 
infrastructure to enhance and 
expand pedestrian access to 
transit 

Allocated (Based on 
employment and 
population) and 

Competitive 
$47,000 

 

The allocations available to the Village under the MRNB, BICCS and WITT programs can be combined 
and used for a multi-use path that meets certain standards including a 2.7-meter-wide paved path. The 
deadline for applications under these programs was January 29th, 2021; however, TransLink is allowing 
the Village some flexibility if we can submit a general application within two weeks after the April 12, 
2021 Council meeting.  

Shezana will be explaining in detail the funding opportunities and related requirements at the meeting. 
TransLink is looking for a commitment from Council in the form of a motion should they wish to proceed 
with a project application under these programs. The Village share of funding (the $43,208) could come 
from the general capital reserve fund should Council choose to proceed with a funding application. A 
draft motion is shown under the recommendations section, for Council’s consideration, should they wish 
to make application for project funding. 



 
 

 
 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: April 12, 2021   
 
From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant  
  
Subject: Grant Requests 
 

Recommendation: 
That the report entitled “Grant Requests” dated April 12, 2021, be received for information.  

Purpose: 
The purpose of this report is to present the 2021 grant requests received to date and to seek Council final 
direction as to which requests that they wish to support including the respective dollar amounts they wish 
to provide.  
 
Background: 
The following grant requests have been received: 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.2



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Grant Requests 
April 12, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 

 

The community grants provided over the past three (3) years are as follows: 

 
 

 

The 2021 provisional budget for community grants is $4,763. Council direction is requested in terms of 
which grant requests that they would like to support including the respective dollar amounts.  



 
 

 
 

              
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: April 12, 2021   
 
From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
 
Subject: Provisional 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan - Public Consultation 
 
 
Recommendations 
That the Village of Belcarra 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan bylaw be prepared on the basis of the following: 
 

____% increase in property taxes for 2021, ____ % increase in property taxes for 2022, ____ 
% increase in property taxes for 2023, ____ % increase in property taxes for 2024, and ____ % 
increase in property taxes for 2025;  

 
____% increase in water user rates for 2021, ____ % increase in water user rates for 2022, ____ 
% increase in water user rates for 2023, ____ % increase in water user rates for 2024, and ____ 
% increase in water user rates for 2025; and 

 
 ____% increase in Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) user rates for 2021, ____ % increase in 
WARD user rates for 2022, ____ % increase in WARD user rates for 2023, ____ % increase in  
WARD user rates for 2024, and ____ % increase in WARD user rates for 2025.  

 
 
Purpose 
The purpose of this report is to present the Village of Belcarra’s provisional 2021 – 2025 Financial 
Plan for public consultation including three (3) different scenarios for property tax, water user rate and 
WARD user rate increases.  After public input, Council’s direction is requested in terms of the rate 
increases to include in the Village 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan bylaw.  

Background 
At the March 22, 2021 Council meeting Council requested that the following financial plan scenarios 
be presented for public input/feedback: 

Scenarios A  
• 5% per increase in property taxes in 2021 and each year thereafter in the plan to 2025;  
• 10% per increase in water user rates in 2021 and each year thereafter in the plan to 2025; and  
• 10% per increase WARD user rates in 2021 and each year thereafter in the plan to 2025.  

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.3



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Provisional 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan - Public Consultation 
April 12, 2021 
Page 2 of 6 
 
      Scenarios B  

• 7% per increase in property taxes in 2021 and each year thereafter in the plan to 2025;  
• 12% per increase in water user rates in 2021 and each year thereafter in the plan to 2025; and  
• 12% per increase WARD user rates in 2021 and each year thereafter in the plan to 2025.  

     Scenarios C  
• 10% per increase in property taxes in 2021 and each year thereafter in the plan to 2025;  
• 12% per increase in water user rates in 2021 and each year thereafter in the plan to 2025; and  
• 15% per increase WARD user rates in 2021 and each year thereafter in the plan to 2025.  

The attached public consultation document (represents Scenario A) includes detailed information on 
the Village’s operating and capital plans for 2021 – 2025, including comparisons with other 
benchmark communities.   

 

Report 
The outcome and impacts of the three (3) different scenarios are summarized below. These numbers 
represent the latest financial plan/budget changes.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Provisional 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan - Public Consultation 
April 12, 2021 
Page 3 of 6 
 

Provisional 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Scenarios 

Descriptions 

Draft 
2021 

Budget 
2022 
Plan 

2023 
Plan 

2024 
Plan 

2025 
Plan 

Scenario A – 5% Increase in Property Taxes, 10% increase in Water User Rates & 10% increase in WARD User Rates 
General Operating Fund Transfers to Reserves & Surplus 
(includes Community Works Gas Tax Funds) $387,000 $468,000 $569,000 $620,000 $670,000 

Water Operating Fund Transfers to Reserves & Surplus  $25,000 $41,000 $25,000 $77,000 $114,000 
WARD Operating Fund Transfers to (from) Reserves & 
Surplus ($13,000) ($1,000) ($3,000) $9,000 $23,000 

Total Projected Reserve & Surplus Transfers $399,000 $508,000 $591,000 $706,000 $807,000 

Scenario B – 7% Increase in Property Taxes, 12% increase in Water User Rates & 12% increase in WARD User Rates 

General Operating Fund Transfers to Reserves & Surplus 
(includes Community Works Gas Tax Funds) $404,000 $504,000 $628,000 $703,000 $781,000 

Water Operating Fund Transfers to Reserves & Surplus  $29,000 $51,000 $41,000 $101,000 $147,000 

WARD Operating Fund Transfers to (from) Reserves & 
Surplus ($11,000) $4,000 $6,000 $23,000 $42,000 

Total Projected Reserve & Surplus Transfers $422,000 $559,000 $675,000 $827,000 $970,000 

Scenario C – 10% Increase in Property Taxes, 12% increase in Water User Rates & 15% increase in WARD User Rates 

General Operating Fund Transfers to Reserves & Surplus 
(includes Community Works Gas Tax Funds) $430,000 $560,000 $720,000 $837,000 $964,000 

Water Operating Fund Transfers to Reserves & Surplus  $29,000 $51,000 $41,000 $101,000 $147,000 
WARD Operating Fund Transfers to (from) Reserves & 
Surplus ($7,000) $12,000 $20,000 $44,000 $72,000 

Total Projected Reserve & Surplus Transfers $452,000 $623,000 $781,000 $982,000 $1,183,000 
       *Numbers are rounded for presentation purposes



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Provisional 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan - Public Consultation 
April 12, 2021 
Page 4 of 6 
 
 
Taxes and User Rates on Average Value Home 
The overall increases in property taxes, user rates and the parcel tax for an average value home in 
Belcarra, based on the previously noted scenarios, are shown below.  
 
 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Provisional 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan - Public Consultation 
April 12, 2021 
Page 5 of 6 
 

 
 
 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Provisional 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan - Public Consultation 
April 12, 2021 
Page 6 of 6 
 
   
Summary 
We respectfully request Council direction in terms of the property tax, water user rate and WARD user rate 
increases that should be reflected in the Village 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan bylaw.  
 
Attachment: 

Provisional 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Document  
 
 
 
 

 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

                                                                                                                                        

 

Village of Belcarra 
Provisional 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Document 

(based on 5% increase in property taxes and 10% increases in water & WARD user rates) 
(presented April 12, 2021) 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text



 

 1 
 

Table of Contents     
  

   
Summary ............................................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Introduction & Overview ........................................................................................................................................................................ 3 

General Operating Fund ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Water Operating Fund ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund ................................................................................................................................................. 7 

Capital Plan ......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Reserves & Surpluses .......................................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

Property Taxes & User Fees ............................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

General Operating Fund Details ........................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Water Operating Fund Details .............................................................................................................................................................. 15 

Water Fund Debt ................................................................................................................................................................................. 18 

Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund Details ...................................................................................................................... 19 

5 - Year Capital Plan Details ................................................................................................................................................................. 21 

Projected Reserve & Surplus Balances .................................................................................................................................................. 24 

Comparative Benchmarks .................................................................................................................................................................... 25 

 
 
 
 



 

 2 
 

Summary 
The Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan includes a 5% property tax increase in 2021, and 5% per year for each of the four (4) years thereafter. In addition, all water 
and WARD user rate increases have been set at 10% per annum in each year of the plan. The planned rate increases, the regular operating revenues and 
expenses and the resulting reserve/surplus transfers, together with the planned capital expenditures under the plan are as follows:  

Summary of Provisional 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan with 2020 Budget Comparisons 

Description 
2020 

Budget 

Draft 
2021 

Budget 
2022 
Plan 

2023 
Plan 

2024 
Plan 

2025 
Plan 

Property tax increases 15% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Water rate increases (exclusive of parcel tax) 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 

WARD rate increases 5% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 

General Operating Fund – Regular Operating Revenues  $1,373,000  $1,474,000  $1,540,000  $1,613,000  $1,680,000  $1,749,000  

General Operating Fund – Regular Operating Expenses $1,112,000  $1,144,000  $1,132,000  $1,104,000  $1,123,000  $1,142,000  

General Operating Fund Transfers to Reserves & Surplus (includes 
Community Works Gas Tax Funds) 

$318,000  $387,000  $468,000  $569,000  $620,000  $670,000  

Water Operating Fund – Regular Operating Revenues  $282,000  $318,000  $352,000  $390,000  $432,000  $475,000  

Water Operating Fund – Regular Operating Expenses $219,000  $293,000  $311,000  $365,000  $355,000  $361,000  

Water Operating Fund Transfers to Reserves & Surplus  $65,000  $25,000  $41,000  $25,000  $77,000  $114,000  

WARD Operating Fund – Regular Operating Revenues  $123,000  $135,000  $149,000  $163,000  $180,000  $197,000  

WARD Operating Fund – Regular Operating Expenses $110,000  $149,000  $150,000  $166,000  $170,000  $174,000  

WARD Operating Fund Transfers to (from) Reserves & Surplus $13,000  ($13,000) ($1,000) ($3,000) $9,000  $23,000  

Total Projected Reserve & Surplus Transfers $396,000  $399,000  $508,000  $591,000  $706,000  $807,000  

Planned Capital Expenditures $4,259,000  $441,000  $404,000  $278,000  $264,000  $407,000  
   *Numbers based on the current draft financial plan. Numbers are rounded for presentation purposes.  



 

 3 
 

Introduction & Overview 
Staff and the Village’s Financial Consultant are pleased to present the 
Village’s Provisional 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan which includes the Draft 2021 
Budget. This document provides summary and detailed financial information 
for the Village three (3) operating funds (the General Operating Fund, the 
Water Operating Fund and the Waste & Recycle Depot Operating Fund) and 
for the Village’s 5-year capital spending program and its various reserve and 
surplus accounts. In addition, information is provided on key benchmark 
information with other comparable jurisdictions.    

The financial information presented purposely differentiates between regular 
and extraordinary (includes one-time, non-reoccurring and/ or designated 
items) operating expenses and revenues so that a clearer picture of the true 
cost of funding core operations is visible.   

General Operating Fund 

The Draft 2021 General Operating Fund Budget includes a property tax 
increase of 5% with approximately $330,000 being available for transfers to 
reserves and surplus accounts ($387,000 including gas tax funds).  The 2021 
Draft Operating Fund Budget includes two major projects: the OCP Review & 
Update ($100,000 - funded from Community Works Gas Tax Funds) and the 
Asset Management Plan/Long-Term Financial Plan ($75,000 – funded from 
Community Works Gas Tax Funds and a grant). In addition, a Community 
Wildfire Protection Plan is budgeted for at $25,000 and a Housing Needs 
Assessment Study at $15,000, both funded entirely from grants.  

 

 

 

 



 

 4 
 

 

 



 

 5 
 

 

 



 

 6 
 

Water Operating Fund 

The Draft 2021 Water Operating Fund Budget includes a water rate increase 
of 10%, with approximately $25,000 being available for transfers to reserves 
and surplus accounts.   

 

 

 



 

 7 
 

Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund 

The Draft 2021 WARD Operating Fund Budget includes a provisional rate 
increase of 10% with approximately $14,000 being transferred from WARD 
surplus to balance the budget.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 8 
 

  

Capital Plan 

A detailed 5-year capital plan is provided in this document of which a 
summary follows.  

The draft 5-year capital plan in WARD provides for the replacement of 
essential equipment such as the compactor, containers, motors and bin lids. 
The draft 5-year capital plan in Water focuses on a universal water meter 
program, leak detection and engineering for a new water system.  

The major capital projects in the General Fund include generators, a new roof 
for the public works building, security systems, vehicle replacements, road 
rehabilitation and improvements (for the non-MRN and MRN road), upkeep 
of the storm sewer system, trail improvements and a fence for the multi-use 
court.   

The draft capital plan over the 5 years (2021 – 2025 totals approximately $1.8 
million.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 9 
 

Reserves & Surpluses 

The Village’s reserve and surplus balances are projected to grow from about 
$1.7 million to $3.2 million over the next 5 years (see graph below) based on 
the Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan including the planned reserve transfer 
and capital spending.  

 

 

 

 

 



 

 10 
 

 

Property Taxes & User Fees 
 

The Village’s Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan reflects annual increases in 
water and WARD user fees of 10% to provide for the increased cost of 
providing these services and to built up reserves for important future 
infrastructure projects. In addition, the Plan provides for a 5% increase in 
property taxes for 2021 and 5% per annum thereafter. The property tax and 
user rate increases in the Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan are summarized as 
follows. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 11 
 

 

General Operating Fund Details 

2021 Draft General Operating Fund Budget Highlights 2022 – 2025 Draft General Operating Fund Financial Plan Highlights 

 Provisional general property tax increase of 5%. 
 $1.47 million of regular operating revenues and $1.14 million of 

regular operating expenses (includes $133,000 of revenue and 
expense for Major Road Network). 

 Allocation of centralized support costs to the Major Road Network 
(MRN) and the Water and WARD operating funds at 50% phased in 
level for 2021.  

 Special project funding for OCP Review & Update (budget of 
$100,000), Asset Management Plan/Long-Term Financial Plan 
(budget of $75,000), Community Wildfire Protection Plan (budget of 
$25,000) and Housing Needs Assessment Study ($15,000) with a 
combination of reserve and grant funding. 

 $387,000 of funds budgeted for transfer to reserves and surplus 
(includes $57,000 to the Community Gas Tax Reserve Fund). 
 

 

 Ongoing provisional annual general property increases of 5%.  
 Allocation of centralized support costs to the Major Road Network 

(MRN) and the Water and WARD operating funds at 75% phased in 
level for 2021 and 100% thereafter.  

 Reserve and surplus transfers increasing each year to the $670,000 
level in 2025 (includes $63,000 to the Community Works Gas Tax 
Fund). 
 

 In 2021 every 1% increase in General Property Taxes will generate $8,500 of additional revenue 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 12 
 

 

 



 

 13 
 

 

 



 

 14 
 

 



 

 15 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Water Operating Fund Details 

2021 Draft Water Operating Fund Budget Highlights 2022 – 2025 Draft Water Operating Fund Financial Plan Highlights 

 10% increase in water user rates for those connected to the water system 
and for those not connected to the water system. 

 $318,000 of regular operating revenues and $293,000 of regular 
operating expenses. 

 Allocation of centralized support costs charged to Water operating 
fund at 50% phased in level for 2021.  

 Budgeted increase in water usage and budgeted cost increases for the 
purchase of water from the Greater Vancouver Water District (GVWD) 
and from the District of North Vancouver (for water distribution). These 
factors together are increasing by 35%.  

 $25,000 of contributions or transfers to reserves and surplus.  
 

 Ongoing 10% increases in water user rates. 
 Increased transfers to water reserves and surplus after full allocation of 

centralized support costs and increased water usage/ 
purchase/distribution costs are offset by annual rate increases. 

 $114,000 available for transfer to reserve and surplus in 2025.  

 In 2021 every 1% increase in Water User Rates would generate $2,700 of additional revenue 



 

 16 
 

 

 

 



 

 17 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 18 
 

Water Fund Debt 
 

 

 



 

 19 
 

 Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund Details  
 

2021 Draft WARD Operating Fund Budget Highlights 2022 – 2025 Draft WARD Operating Fund Financial Plan Highlights 

 Increase in WARD user rates of 10%. 
 $135,000 of regular operating revenues and $149,000 of regular 

operating expenses. 
 Allocation of centralized support costs charged to WARD 

operating fund at 50% phased in level for 2021.  
 Large increase (39%) in collection, hauling and disposal costs from the 

contractor are negatively affecting the WARD operating fund.  
 Contribution from WARD surplus of $13,000 required in 2021. 

 

 Annual WARD user rate increases of 10%. 
 Transfer for WARD surplus required in 2022 to 2023 based on new 

allocation of centralized support costs and increased hauling/disposal 
costs, which will be offset by annual rate increases in subsequent years. 

 $23,000 available for transfer to surplus in 2025. 

In 2021 every 1% increase in WARD User Rates would generate $1,200 of additional revenue 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 20 
 

 



 

 21 
 

5 - Year Capital Plan Details 

2021 Capital Highlights 2022 – 2025 Capital Highlights 

 $426,000 of capital projects planned for. 
 $57,000 of funding from TransLink for Bedwell Bay Road Recessed 

Pavement Markers (Cats Eyes) project and Bedwell Bay Road Safety 
Barrier Project.  

 Funding to start universal water metering project.  
 $155,000 of capital spending for Non-MRN road improvements.  

 

 

 Approximately 1.35 million of capital spending for 2022 – 2025 with 
continuation of universal water metering planned for as well as major 
vehicle replacements and road improvements.   

 

 



 

 22 
 

 



 

 23 
 

 

 



 

 24 
 

Projected Reserve & Surplus Balances 

 



 

 25 
 

 

Comparative Benchmarks 
The comparisons or benchmarks presented here are for discussion purposes 
during budget deliberations. When viewing the data, it is important to 
remember that each community is unique in terms of its assessment base, its 
geography, its budgetary demands, etc. - as such no two (2) communities are 
exacting alike. 

However, when looking at comparisons in a general context certain trends 
begin to emerge which are worthy of thought and discussion. The following 
communities have been chosen as comparators to Belcarra.  

• Anmore 
• Bowen Island 
• Lions Bay 

 

This statistical data is published by the Ministry of Community, Sport and 
Cultural Development (Ministry) annually and is referred to as “Local 
Government Statistics”. The value of a representative house in Belcarra for 
2020, as published by the Ministry, was $1,355,482; however, this value is 
artificially low as it is impacted by water lot values on certain properties. The 
true value of a representative home in Belcarra for 2020 is $1,987,068 based 
on negating the impact of the water lots. This updated value and the 
associated tax impact of this value has been used in the tax comparisons 
shown in these benchmark comparisons.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 



 

 26 
 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2019 Year-End 

BC Local Government Statistics - 2019 Year-End 
 

 

BC Local Government Statistics - 2019 Year-End 
 

 



 

 27 
 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2020 with house value/taxes in Belcarra increased based on 
impact of water lots 
 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2020 with house value/taxes in Belcarra increased based on 
impact of water lots 
 

 

 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2020 with house value/taxes in Belcarra increased based on 
impact of water lots 
 

 



 

 28 
 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2020 with house value/taxes in Belcarra increased based on 
impact of water lots 
 

 

 

 



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.1 a)







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.1 b)



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.2



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.4





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.5







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.6





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.7



prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.8







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.9





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.10









prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.11











prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.12



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.13



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.14



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.15


	3.1 2021 03 22 Regular Council Minutes.pdf
	5.3 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated March 22, 2021 Draft           2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Update
	5.5 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated March 22, 2021 regarding  Monitored Fire Alarms
	Certified Correct:

	4.2 2021 04 12 TransLink Presentation - 2021 Municipal Cost Share Programs-Belcarra.pdf
	2021 Municipal Cost Share Programs
	Agenda
	Slide Number 3
	Mayors’ Vision
	Suite of Cost �Share Programs�
	Municipal Funding Programs - Online�
	Slide Number 7
	Belcarra’s Allocation Amounts�2021 Programs Cost Share Programs�
	Potential Project Details
	2021 Cost Share Program Timeline �
	Project Eligibility- MRNB�
	Project Eligibility- BICCS�
	Project Eligibility- WITT�
	Application Form
	Project Readiness�
	Project Design�
	Project Priority�
	Program Progress 
	Thank you for your time!

	5.1 2021 04 12 TransLink Funding Opportunities.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: April 12, 2021
	From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant & Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator
	Subject: TransLink Funding Opportunities
	Recommendations:
	Purpose:
	Background:
	TransLink has various funding programs for communities beyond the regular operations, maintenance pavement rehabilitation (OMR) funding provided. The various programs and the Village allocated shares (total of $187,000) under the various programs are ...
	The Village previously submitting funding applications for two projects, Cats Eyes and Barriers for Bedwell Bay Road, under the MRNB program. The submitted project costs for these two projects were $26,500 and $50,000, respectively, with 75% funding c...
	The allocations available to the Village under the MRNB, BICCS and WITT programs can be combined and used for a multi-use path that meets certain standards including a 2.7-meter-wide paved path. The deadline for applications under these programs was J...
	Shezana will be explaining in detail the funding opportunities and related requirements at the meeting. TransLink is looking for a commitment from Council in the form of a motion should they wish to proceed with a project application under these progr...

	5.2 2021 04 12 Grant Requests Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: April 12, 2021
	From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
	Subject: Grant Requests
	Recommendation:
	Purpose:
	Background:
	The following grant requests have been received:
	The community grants provided over the past three (3) years are as follows:
	The 2021 provisional budget for community grants is $4,763. Council direction is requested in terms of which grant requests that they would like to support including the respective dollar amounts.

	5.3 2021-04-12 Provisional 2021-2025 Financial Plan Public Consultation.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: April 12, 2021
	From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
	Subject: Provisional 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan - Public Consultation
	Recommendations
	The purpose of this report is to present the Village of Belcarra’s provisional 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan for public consultation including three (3) different scenarios for property tax, water user rate and WARD user rate increases.  After public inp...
	Background
	At the March 22, 2021 Council meeting Council requested that the following financial plan scenarios be presented for public input/feedback:
	Report
	Taxes and User Rates on Average Value Home
	The overall increases in property taxes, user rates and the parcel tax for an average value home in Belcarra, based on the previously noted scenarios, are shown below.
	Summary
	We respectfully request Council direction in terms of the property tax, water user rate and WARD user rate increases that should be reflected in the Village 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan bylaw.
	Attachment:
	Provisional 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Document

	5.3 Attachment Provisional 2021 - 2025 Financial Plan document.pdf
	Summary
	Introduction & Overview
	General Operating Fund
	Water Operating Fund
	Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund
	Capital Plan
	Reserves & Surpluses
	Property Taxes & User Fees

	General Operating Fund Details
	Water Fund Debt
	Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund Details
	Projected Reserve & Surplus Balances
	Comparative Benchmarks




